AGENDA
CITY OF LAKE CITY
City Council Regular Session
May 16, 2011
7:00 P.M. at City Hall

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

INVOCATION - Councilmember Jake Hill, Jr.

1. ROLL CALL
Presentation:
Design Update Kicklighter Waste Water Treatment Plant
Mr. Mike Murphy, Hatch Mott MacDonald, Inc.
2. PROCLAMATTIONS
A. Public Works Appreciation Week-May 15-21, 2011,
3. MINUTES
A. Regular Session-May 2, 2011
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
5. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA
A. Mandese White Construction, Inc., Change Order
No. 4, $25,045.33 (Airport Project)
6. PERSONS WISHING TO ADDRESS COUNCIL
7. PERSONS WISHING TO APPEAR THAT ARE NOT ON THE AGENDA
8. OLD BUSINESS

None



City Council Agenda

May 16,
Page 2
9.

10.

11.

12.

2011

NEW BUSINESS

A.

B.

C.

RESOLUTIONS:

1.

City Council Resolution No. 2011-034, if
adopted, will authorize the City to enter
into a Public Transportation Joint
Participation Agreement with the State of
Florida, Department of Transportation for the
purchase and installation of a new Automatic
Weather Observation System (“AWOS III”) for
the airport

Jody Dupree Development Proposal (Wendell Johnson)

Columbia County EMS Proposal (Wendell Johnson)

DEPARTMENTAL ADMINISTRATION

A.

Police Department Capital Projects, COPS Grant and
Secure our Schools Grant (Wendell Johnson/Chief
Gilmore}

Note:

Item “A” was presented and approved at the

Public Safety Committee Meeting on May 12, 2011.

COMMENTS BY COUNCIL MEMBERS

ADJOURNMENT




E[Hrnrlamat Lzt l

6 TEDES IR

PUBLIC WORKS APPRECIATION WEEK
MAY 15 _MAayY 2157 2011

Whereas, public works services provided in our comniunigv are
an integral part of our citizens’ everyday lives; and

Whereas,  the support of an understanding and informed
- citizenry is vital to the efficient operation of public
works systems and programs such as water, sewers,
streets and highways, public buildings, solid waste
collection, and park mamteuance, and :

| Whereas,  the health, safety, and comfon_t of this community
greatly depends on these facilities and services; and

Whereas, the quality and effectiveness of these facilities, as well
: as their planning, design and construction, is vitally
dependent upon the efforts and skill of public works
officials; and

Whereas,  the efficiency of the qualified and dedicated
personnel, who staff public works departments, is
materially influenced by the people’s attitude and
understanding of the unportance of the work they
perform.-

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Stephen M. Witt, Mayor of the City of Lake
City, Florida, do hereby proclaim May 15™ — May 21%, 2011 as

- “PUBLIC WORKS APPRECIATION WEEK"

In witness whereof I have
hereunto set my hand and caused
this seal to be affixed this 16™
day of May 2011.

Stephen M. Witt, Mayor -
City of Lake City

Seal of the @ity of Lake Gity
State of Florida 112



REGULAR SESSION MINUTES CITY COUNCIL
The City Council in and for the citizens of the City of Lake City,
Florida, met in Regular Session, on May 2, 2011 beginning at 7:00 P.M., in

the City Council Chambers, located at City Hall 205 North Marion Avenue,
Lake City, Florida.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

INVOCATION - Mayor Witt

1. ROLL CALL
Mayor/Councilman Stephen M. Witt
Vice Mayor/Council Member Melinda Moses
City Council Jake Hill, Jr.
Eugene Jefferson
George R. Ward
City Attorney Herbert F. Darby
City Manager Wendell Johnson
Sergeant-at-Arms Chief Argatha Gilmore
City Clerk Audrey E. Sikes
2. PROCLAMATIONS
A. Retirement recognition - Sharcn Eldridge

At this time Mayor Witt presented Ms. Eldridge with a
recognition proclamation and a gift from the City of Lake City.

B. Municipal Clerks Week - May 1 - 7, 2011
At this time Mayor Witt and Vice Mayor Melinda Moses presented
City Clerk Audrey Sikes and Deputy City Clerk Michele Greene
with the Municipal Clerks Week Proclamation.

C. Natiocnal Older Americans Month - May 2011
At this time Mayor Witt presented the National Older Americans
Month Proclamation to Columbia County Senior Sexvices. The
following perscns were recognized as in attendance for support
of this proclamation: Juliette Houston, Romania Newman, Mike
and Mary Feraudo and David Rountree.

3. MINUTES
B, Workshop - April 18, 2011
BE. Regular Session - April 18, 201l




Mr. Ward made a motion to approve the April 18, 2011 Workshop Minutes
and April 18, 2011 Regular Session minutes as presented. Mr. Hill
seconded the motion and the motion carried unanimously on a voice
vote.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Mr. Jefferson made a motion to approve the agenda as presented. Ms.
Moses seconded this motion and the motion carried unanimously on a
voice vote.

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA

A, Authorization for an administration correction to the April 4,
2011 Airport Committee Minutes and the April 4, 2011 City
Council Regular Session Minutes to reflect the correct language
“Construction Change Directive #3” instead of “Change Order No.
3” as noted on each document related to Mandese White
Censtruction, Inc.

B. Tetra Tech HAI, Invoice No. 50436788, $1,294.54
(WTP Bidding & Construction and Equipment)
C. Jones Edmunds, Invoice No. 0226264, $1,830.865
(Sisters Welcome Road Reclaimed Water System)
D. Mandese White Construction, Inc., Pay Request No. 7, $308,019.19

{Airport Project)

Ms. Moses made a motion to approve the consent agenda, as presented,
consisting of items A - D listed above. Mr. Jefferson seconded the
motion and the motion carried unanimously on a voice vote.

PERSONS WISHING TO ADDRESS COUNCIL
Neone

PERSONS WISHING TC APPEAR THAT ARE NOT ON THE AGENDA

James Montgecmery, 229 Scutheast 0ld Manse Glen, Lake City, Florida
32025. Mr. Montgomery ,reported when the road was widened the hydrant
was removed but never replaced. Mr. Montgomery thanked the City for
the hydrant replacement near his residence. He also commended Public
Works for their efforts at the tree give away event held last Friday.

OLD BUSINESS
None



9.

NEW BUSINESS

A,

RESOLUTIONS:

City Council Resolution No. 2011-027, if adopted, awards
the bid to Freedom Mobile Homes for the demolition and
replacement of housing unit for Katie Avinger Malave, Unit
No. 07-1% under the provisions c¢f Community Development
Block Grant Housing Rehabilitation Program DCA Contract No.
0BDB-T3-03-22-02-H10. Mr. Hill made a motion to adopt City
Council Resolution No. 2011-027, awarding bid to Freedom
Mobile Homes for the demolition and replacement of housing
unit for Katie Avinger Malave, Unit No., 07-1% under the
provisions of Community Development Block Grant Housing
Rehabilitation Program DCA Contract No. 08DB-T#-03-22-02-
H10. Mr. Ward seconded the motion. A roll call vote was
taken and the motion passed.

Mr. Hill Aye
Mr. Ward Aye
Ms. Moses Aye
Mr. Jefferson Aye
Mayor Witt Aye

City Council Resolution No. 2011-028, if adopted, awards the
bid to Freedom Mobile Homes for the democlition and
replacement of housing unit for Eunice Miller, Unit No.
07-16 under the provisions of Community Development Block
Grant Housing Rehabkilitation Program DCA Ccntract No.
08DBR-T3-03-22-02-H10. Mr. Jefferson made a moticn to adopt
City Council Resolution No. 2011-028, awarding bid to
Freedom Mobile Homes for the demclition and replacement of
housing unit 07-16 for Eunice Miller under the provisions
of the Community Development Block Grant Housing
Rehabilitation Program DCA Contract No. 08DB-T#-03-22-02-
H10. Ms. Moses seconded the motion. A roll call vote was
taken and the motion passed.

Mr. Jefferson Aye

Ms. Moses Aye
Mr, Hill Aye
Mr. Ward Lvye
Mayor Witt Avye

City Council Resolution No. 2011-029, if adopted, awards
the bid to Freedom Mobile Homes for the demolition and
replacement of housing unit for Eunie English, Unit No. 07-
17 under the provisions of to Community Development Block
Grant Housing Rehabilitation Program DCA Contract No. 08DB-



T3-03-22-02-H10. Mr. Jefferson made a motion to adopt
City Council Resolution No. 2011-029, awarding bid teo
Freedom Mobile Homes for the demolition and replacement of
housing unit 07-17 for Eunie English under the provisions
of the Community Development Block Grant Housing
Rehabilitation Program DCA Contract No. 08DB-T3-03-22-02-
H10. Mr. Ward seconded the motion. A roll call vote was
taken and the motion passed.

Mr. Jefferson Aye

Mr. Ward Avye
Mr. Hill Aye
Ms. Moses Aye
Mayor Witt Aye

City Council Resolution No. 2011-030, if adopted, will
authorize the City to enter into Supplemental Agreement
Number Five to Basic Contract for Professional Consulting
Services with GTC Design Group, LLC. Mr. Johnscn reported
this contract has been in effect since January 2007 and
went on record for Mr. Bill Freeman that the City will be
going out for competitive bids in the future for these type
of projects. Mr. Ward made a motion to adopt City Council
Resolution No. 2011-030, authorizing Supplement Number Five
to contract with GTC Design Group. Mr. Hill seconded the
motion. A roll call vote was taken and the motion passed.

Mr. Ward Aye
Mr. Hill Aye
Ms., Moses Avye
Mr. Jefferson Aye
Mayor Witt Aye

City Council Resolution No. 2011-031, urging the St. Johns
River Water Management District (SJRWMD) and the City of
Jacksonville to defer action on the proposed consumptive
use permit for Jacksonville Electric Authority to increase
the annual consumption amount until a full examination of
the effects to communities in the Suwannee River Region can
be evaluated. Mr. Jefferson made a motion to adopt City
Council Resolution No. 2011-031, urging the St. Johns River
Water Management District and the City of Jacksonville to
defer action on the proposed consumptive use permit for
Jacksonville Electric Authority until a full examination of
the effects to communities in the Suwannee River Region can
be evaluated. Ms. Moses seconded the motion. A roll call
vote was taken and the motion passed.



10.

Mr. Jefferson Aye

Ms. Moses Aye
Mr. Hill Aye
Mr. Ward Aye
Mayor Witt Aye

City Council Resolution No. 2011-032, if adopted, will
authorize the City to enter into Change Order No. 3 to
Agreement between the City and Mandese White Construction,
Inc., relating to the construction of the general aviation
terminal of the airport. Mr. Ward made a motion to adopt
City Council Resolution No. 2011-032, authorizing Change
Order No. 3 with Mandese White Construction. This motion
is subject to the City Manager’s review of the language to
be included in the Change Order relating to the purchase
and acceptance of the materials being purchased. Ms. Moses
seconded the motion. A roll call vote was taken and the
motion passed.

Mr. Ward Avye
Ms. Moses Aye
Mr. Hill Aye
Mr. Jefferson Aye
Mayor Witt Aye

City Council Resolution No. 2011-033, if adopted, will
declare certain property owned by the City to be surplus to
its needs and will authorize the City to sell such property
at a public auction. Ms. Moses made a motion to adopt City
Council Resolution No. 2011-033, declaring certain property
owned by the City to be surplus and authorizing the city to
sell such property at a public auction. Mr. Hill seconded
the motion. A roll call vote was taken and the motion
passed.

Ms. Moses Aye
Mr. Hill Avye
Mr. Jefferson Aye
Mr. Ward Aye
Mayor Witt Aye

DEPARTMENTAL ADMINISTRATION

None



11. COMMENTS BY COUNCIL MEMBERS

Mayor Witt reminded of the following:

¢ Breakfast with Police Chief Gilmore on May 14, 2011 at the Public
Safety Building

e Farmers Market on Saturday, May 7, 2011

e National Day of Prayer, Thursday, May 5, 2011 at noon

12. ADJOURNMENT

All matters having been handled, the meeting adjourned at 7:30 PM on
a motion made and duly seconded.

Stephen M. Witt, Mayor/Council Member

Audrey E. Sikes, City Clerk



Mandese White Construction, Inc.
2631 NW 41st Street, Suite E-2
Gamesvulle FL 32606
. 352-373-8883 Ph 352-373-7334F

ca—ml #j_,

based ol

Project Change Order No.: 4
Lake City Municipal Airport Date: 5/11/2011
New Terminal Building, Access Rd. &

Terminal Parking

Lake City, Florida Architect's Job No.: 2007044.01
Owner - MWC! Job No.: 1003
City of Lake City Contract Date: 9/20/2010
205 N Marion Avenue

Lake City, FL 32055 Contract For: Construction

(<]

OWNER

ARCHITECT

<

CONTRACTOR
FIELD

OTHER

O OOdu

The original {Contract Sum) (Guaranteed-Maximum-Price) was

The net change by previously authorized Change Orders (through OCO no. 4)
The Contract Sum {Guaranteed-Maximum-Rree) prior to this Change Order was

$ 2,261,961.00
$ (100,624.72)

$ 2,161,336;;0‘.‘.‘7'6

The Contract Sum (Guaranteed Maximum Price) will be increased/desreased by this Change Order in J
the amount of $ 25,045.33
The new Contract Sum {Guaranteed-Maximum-Price) including this Change Order will be $ 21 86.381.6:{ !

The Contract Time will be (increased) (decreased) (unchanged) by ( O ) days.
The date of Substantial Completion as of the date of this Change Order

therefore is 6/27i12011

NOT VALID UNTIL SIGNED BY THE ARCHITECT, CONTRACTOR, AND OWNER

CONTRACTOR ARCHITECT OWNER

Mandese White Construction, Inc. Passero & Associates City of Lake City
2631 NW 41st Street, Suile E- 13453 N Main Street 205 N Marion Avenue
Gainevi{lje\a,af 32606 . /n @Esonv:lle FL 32218 Lake City, FL 32055
BY {(Signature) — BY (Signature) BY (Signature)
Milito Zapata, Sr Project Manager Anéw U&'Dt@.S ko

{Typed name) {Typed name? {Typed name)

s l i S / I
DATE ° ° DATE L DATE
\M %—” )1
A
(v



Lake City Municipal Airport

iidhite Construction

New Terminal Building, Access Rd. & Terminal Parking

Lake City. Florida

CHANGE ORDER No. FOUR Date: 5M1/2011

SUMMARY OF ITEMS:
tem # ~ Description Amount 5ays
1 COP 10 Rev RFP 7 Delete 1 parking space at T-hanger $ (508.00)] )
2 COP 14A RFI 9 - electrical changes due to HVAC changes $ a01.00
3 COP 16 Contuit for security system 3 618.00
RFP 11 - RF1 24 - Owner requested additional man-gate at east of the
4 COP 19 building. $ 1,584.00
5 COP 22A CCD 6 - additional conduit in slab. 5 475.00
6 COP 31 RFP 23 - RF} 026 - REVISED Asphatt Apron Design $ (30,310.67)
7 COP 31A Additional Limerock & survey work / mat'l escalation / OH&P $ 18,034.00
8 COP 35 RFP 12 - Provide SOG rough-in for two ficor outlets in room 123 $ 100.00
g COP 35A RFP 12 - Provide elec. devices for added ficor outleis in room 123 $ 1,803.00
10 |cor 36B RFI 019 - Fire rating changes per AHJ comments $ 726.00
11 |COP 48 Rev#5 Roof Deck - Metal Deck Enhancment angle - Bolt & Nut fasteners $ 22,818.00
RFP 27 - Provide and install light fixture at existing light pole
12 COP 54 NE comer of existing FBO building $ 1,349.00
13 IcOPED RF1 51 - increase in size of gas line fo bldg 11/4"t0 2" $ 2,169.00
14 JCOP 63 Bacteriological Testing $ 469.00
15 |COP 67 Rev Metal Stud Drywall material increase - part i $ 4,818.00
16
17 -
Note: Please note that until these COP's have been approved, MWCI reserves their
18 |right to additional time & GC costs once the full impact of these changes have been
asgessed
TOTALS $ 25,045.33

MOT VALID UNTIL SIGNED BY THE ARCHITECT, CONTRACTOR, AND OWNER

CONTRACTOR ARCHITECT OWMNER

Mandese White Construction, inc. Passero & Associates City of Lake City

2631 NW 41st Street, Suite-E-2 13453 N Main Street 205 N Marion Avenue

Lake City, FL 32055

emvw“ F aﬂ ; J sonvi]ﬁ.(L 32218

BY (Signature) ~\o——> BY (Signature ). BY (Signature]

Milito Zapata, Sr Project anager _ﬁm&.ﬂu M. \JWL( i}‘b

(Tvped name) (Typed namsg) ) (Typed name)
S l-1) stuli

DATE ‘ DATE LI DATE

2631 NW 41st Street, Suite E-2 * Galnesville, FL 32608 * (352) 373-8883 * (352) 3737334 Fax * CGC1514227 * CBC055308



HFD/lss

5/11/2011 2 ? A’/

CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION NO. 2011-034

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAKE CITY,
FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE CITY TO ENTER INTO A PUBLIC
TRANSPORTATION JOINT PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT ("JPA™) WITH
THE STATE OF FLORIDA, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION,
FINANCIAL PROJECT NUMBER 43057519411 FOR THE PURCHASE AND
INSTALLATION OF A NEW AUTOMATIC WEATHER OBSERVATION
SYSTEM ("AWOS {lI") FOR THE LAKE CITY GATEWAY AIRPORT
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS THE LAKE CITY MUNICIPAL AIRPORT).
WHEREAS, the City of Lake City, Florida ("City") and State of Florida,
Department of Transportation ("FDOT") have determined it to be in their mutual interest
to facilitate the development and installation of a new Automatic Weather Observation
System ("AWQOS |II"} for the Lake City Gateway Airport (formerly known as the Lake
City Municipal Airport), (herein the "Project"); and
WHEREAS, the total cost of the Project is $121,444.00; and
WHEREAS, the City has applied to the Federal Aviation Agency ("FAA") for a
grant in the amount of $115,372.00 to provide funds to pay 95% of the cost of the
Project; and
WHEREAS, the City has requested and FDOT is willing to fund the lesser
amount of 2 1/2% or $3,036.00 of the cost of the Project in accordance with and
pursuant to the terms and conditions under FDOT, JPA, Fin. No. 43057519411 (herein
the "JPA"), copy of which is attached hereto and made a part of this resolution; and
WHEREAS, the City is willing to fund $3,036.00 of the cost of the Project; and
WHEREAS, the development of the Project is subject to and conditioned upon

the City receiving from FAA the grant of $115,372.00 to apply on the cost of the Project.



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF LAKE CITY, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The above recitals are all true and accurate and are incorporated
herein and made a part of this resolution.

Section 2. The City is hereby authorized to enter into the JPA with FDOT, Fin.
No. 43057519411,

Section 3. The Mayor is authorized to execute the JPA for and on behalf of the

City.
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the City Council this day of
, 2011.
Mayor-Counciliman
ATTEST:
City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

HERBERT F. DARBY
City Attorney



STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 725-030-08

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION PUBLIC WNSPORTA;EP:
JOINT PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT Page 1 of 14
Financial Project No(s).: Fund: DDR FLAIR 088719
(item-s5egmaent-phase-sequenca}
43057519411 Function: 637 Object Code: 750004
Federal No.: N/A Org. Code: 55022020228
Contract No.- DUNS No.:  80-939-7102 Vendor No.: F 536 000 352 002
CFDA Number.  20.106 CSFA Number: 55004
THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this day of , .

by and between the STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPOhTATION, an agency of the State of Florida,
hereinafter referred to as the Department, and The CITY OF LAKE CITY

205 N. MARION AVENUE, L AKE CITY, FLORIDA 32025
hereinafter referred to as Agency. The Department and Agency agree that alt terms of this Agreement will be completed

on or before MAY 30, 2012 and this Agreement will expire unless a time extension is provided

in accordance with Section 18.00.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Agency has the authority to enter into said Agreement and to undertake the project hereinafter described,
and the Department has been granted the authority to function adequately in all areas of appropriate jurisdiction including
the implementation of an integrated and balanced transportation system and is authorized under

332.006{6)AVIATION ONLY)
Florida Statutes, to enter into this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises and representations herein, the parties agree
as follows:

1.00 Purpose of Agreament: The purpose of this Agreement is

FOR THE PURCHASE AND INSTALLATION OF A NEW AUTOMATIC WEATHER OBSERVATION SYSTEM (AWQS |il)
FOR THE LAKE CITY MUNICIPAL AIRPORT.

and as further described in Exhibit(s) A.B,C, & D attached hereto and by this reference made a part
hereof, hereinafter referred to as the project, and to provide Departmental financial assistance to the Agency and state the
terms and conditions upon which such assistance will be provided and the understandings as to the manner in which the
project will be undertaken and completed.




725-030-06

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION
02111

Page 2 of 14

2.00 Accomplishment of the Project

2.10 General Requirements: The Agency shall commence, and complete the project as described in Exhibit
"A" attached hereto and by this reference made a part hereof this Agreement, with all practical dispatch, in a sound,
econcmical, and efficient manner, and in accordance with the provisions herein, and all applicable laws,

2.20 Pursuant to Federal, State, and Local Law: In the event that any election, referendum, approval, permit,
notice, or other proceeding or autherization is requisite under applicable law to enable the Agency to enter into this
Agreement or to undertake the project hereunder, or to observe, assume or carry out any of the provisions of the
Agreement, the Agency will initiate and consummate, as provided by law, all actions necessary with respect to any such
matters so requisite.

2.30 Funds of the Agency: The Agency shall initiate and prosecute to completion all proceedings necessary
including federal aid requirements to enable the Agency to provide the necessary funds for completion of the project.

2.40 Submission of Proceedings, Contracts and Other Documents: The Agency shall submit to the
Department such data, reports, records, contracts and other documents relating to the project as the Department may
require as listed in Exhibit "C" attached hereto and by this reference made a part hereof.

3.00 Project Cost: The total estimated cost of the projectis $§ 121,444.00 . This amount
is based upon the estimate summarized in Exhibit "B" attached hereto and by this reference made a part hereof this
Agreement. The Agency agrees to bear all expenses in excess of the total estimated cost of the project and any deficits
involved.

4.00 Department Participation: The Department agrees to maximum participation, including contingencies,
in the project in the amount of $  3,036.00 as detailed in Exhibit "B", or in an amount equal to the
percentage(s) of total cost shown in Exhibit "B", whichever is less.

4.10 Project Cost Eligibility : Project costs eligible for State participation will be allowed only from the effective
date of this agreement. It is understood that State participation in eligible project costs is subject to:

(a) Legislative approval of the Department's appropriation request in the adopted work program year that the
project is scheduled to be committed;

(b} Availability of funds as stated in Section 17.00 of this Agreement;

{c) Approval of al! plans, specifications, contracts or cther obligating doecuments and all other terms of this
Agreement;

{d) Department approval of the project scope and budget (Exhibits A & B) at the time appropriation authority
becomes available.

4.20 Front End Funding : Front end funding O is @® is not applicable. If applicable, the Department
may initially pay 100% of the total allowable incurred project costs up to an amount equal to its total share of participation
as shown in paragraph 4.00.

5.00 Retainage : Retainage Q is @® isnot applicable. If applicable, percent of the
Department’s total share of participation as shown in paragraph 4.00 is to be held in retainage to be disbursed, at the
Department's discretion, on or before the compietion of the final project audit.



725-030-06
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION
027t
. A Page Jof 14
6.00 Project Budget and Payment Provisions:

6.10 The Project Budget: A project budget shall be prepared by the Agency and approved by the Department.
The Agency shall maintain said budget, carry out the project and shall incur obligations against and make disbursements
of project funds only in conformity with the fatest approved budget for the project. No budget increase or decrease shall
be effective unless it complies with fund participation requirements established in Section 4.00 of this Agreement and is
approved by the Department Camptroller.

6.20 Paymant Provisions: Unless otherwise allowed under Section 4.20, payment will begin in the year the
project or project phase is scheduled in the work program as of the date of the agreement. Payment will be made for
actual costs incurred as of the date the invoice is submitted with the final payment due upon receipt of a final invoice.

7.00 Accounting Records:

7.10 Establishment and Maintenance of Accounting Records: The Agency shall establish for the project, in
conformity with requirements established by Department’s program guidelines/procedures and "Principles for State and
Local Governments”, separate accounts to be maintained within its existing accounting system or establish independent
accounts. Such accounts are referred to herein collectively as the "project account”. Documentation of the project
account shall be made available to the Department upon request any time during the period of the Agreement and for
three years after final payment is made.

7.20 Funds Recaeived Or Made Available for The Project: The Agency shall appropriately record in the project
account, and deposit in a bank or trust company which is a member of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporaticon, all
payments received by it from the Department pursuant to this Agreement and all other funds provided for, accruing to, or
otherwise received on account of the project, which Department payments and other funds are herein coilectively
referred to as "project funds”. The Agency shall require depositories of project funds to secure continuously and fully all
project funds in excess of the amounts insured under federal plans, or under State plans which have been approved for
the deposit of project funds by the Department, by the deposit or setting aside of collateral of the types and in the manner
as prescribed by State Law for the security of public funds, or as approved by the Department.

7.30 Costs Incurred for the Project: The Agency shall charge to the project account all eligible costs of the
project. Costs in excess of the latest approved budget or attributable to actions which have not received the required
approval of the Department shall not be considered eligible costs.

7.40 Documentation of Project Costs: Alf costs charged to the project, including any approved services
contributed by the Agency or others, shall be supparted by properly executed payrolis, time records, invoices, contracts, or
vouchers evidencing in proper detail the nature and propriety of the charges.

7.50 Checks, Orders, and Vouchers: Any check or order drawn by the Agency with respect to any item which is
or will be chargeable against the project account will be drawn only in accordance with a properly signed voucher then on
file in the office of the Agency stating in proper detail the purpose for which such check or order is drawn. All checks,
payrolls, invoices, contracts, vouchers, orders, or other accounting documents pertaining in whole or in part to the project
shall be clearly identified, readily accessible, and, to the extent feasible, kept separate and apart from all other such
documents.

7.60 Audit Raports: In addition to the requirements below, the Agency agrees to comply and cooperate with any
monitoring procedures/processes deemed appropriate by the Department, including but not limited to site visits
and limited scope audits. The Agency further agrees tc comply and cooperate with any inspections, reviews,
investigations, or audits deemed necessary by the State Comptroller or Auditor General. The Agency shall retain
sufficient records demonstrating its compliance with the terms of this Agreement for a period cf three years from the date
the audit report is issued, and shall allow the Department access to such records and working papers upon request. The
following requirements do not limit the authority of the Department to conduct or arrange for the conduct of additional
audits or evaluations of state financial assistance or limit the authority of any state agency inspecter general, the Auditor
General, or any other state official.

The Agency shall comply with all audit and audit reporting requirements as specified in Exhibit "D" attached hereto and by
this reference made a part hereof this Agreement.



725-0230-06

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION
Q2/1¢

Page 4 of 14

7.61 Monitoring: In addition to reviews of audits conducted in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and Section
215.97, Florida Statutes, (see "Audits™ below), monitoring procedures may include, but not be limited to, on-site visits by
Department staff, limited scope audils as defined by OMB Circular A-133, and/or other procedures. The Agency agrees
to comply and cooperate fuily with any monitoring procedures/processes deemed appropriate by the Department. In the
event the Department determines that a limited scope audit of the Agency is appropriate, the Agency agrees to comply
with any additional instructions provided by the Department staff to the Agency regarding such audit. The Agency further
agrees to comply and cooperate with any inspections, reviews, investigations, or audits deemed necessary by FDOT's
Office of Inspector General (QIG) and Florida’s Chief Financial Officer (CFO) or Auditor General.

7.62 Audits:

Part | Federally Funded: If the Agency is a state, local government, or non-profit organizations as defined in OMB
Circular A-133 and a recipient of federal funds, the following annual audit criteria will apply:

1. In the event that the recipient expends $500,000 or more in Federal awards in its fiscal year, the recipient must
have a single or program-specific audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of OMB Circular A-133, as revised.
Exhibit "D" to this agreement indicates Federal resources awarded through the Department by this agreement. In
determining the Federal awards expended in its fiscal year, the recipient shall consider all sources of Federal awards,
including Federal resources received from the Department. The determination of amounts of Federal awards expended
should be in accordance with the guidelines established by OMB Circular A-133, as revised. An audit of the recipient
conducted by the Auditor General in accordance with the provisions OMB Circular A-133, as revised, will meet the
requirements of this part.

2. In connection with the audit requirements addressed in Part |, Paragraph 1., the recipient shal! fulfill the
requirements relative to auditee respansibilities as provided in Subpart C of OMB Circular A-133.

3. If the recipient expends less than the amount in Part |, Paragraph 1., an audit conducted in accordance with the
provisions of OMB Circular A-133, is not required. If the recipient elects to conduct such an audit, the cost of the audit
must be paid from resources obtained from other than Federal entities.

4. Federal awards are to be identified using the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance {CFDA} title and number,
award number and year, and name of the awarding federal agency.

Part Il State Funded: If the Agency is a nonstate entity as defined by Section 215.97(2)m]}, Florida Statutes, and
a recipient of state funds, the following annual audit criteria will apply:

1. In the event that the recipient expends a total amount of state financial assislance equal to or in excess of $500,
000 in any fiscal year, the recipient must have a State single or project-specific audit for such fiscal year in accordance
with Section 215.97, Florida Statutes; applicable rules of the Department of Financial Services and the CFO; and Chapters
10.550 (local governmenial entities) or 10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit organizations}, Rules of the Auditor General.
Exhibit "D" to this agreement indicates state financial assistance awarded through the Department by this agreement. In
determining the state financial assistance expended in its fiscal year, the recipient shall consider all sources of state
financiat assistance, including state financial assistance received from the Department, other state agencies, and other
nonstate entities. State financial assistance does not include Federal direct or pass-through awards and resources
received by a nonstate entity for Federal program matching requirements,

2. In connection with the audit requirements addressed in Part tl, Paragraph 1., the recipient shall ensure that the
audit complies with the requirements of Section 215.97(7), Florida Statutes. This includes submission of a financial
reporting package as defined by Section 215.97(2)(e), Florida Statutes, and Chapter 10.550 (local governmental entities)
or 10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General,

3. if the recipient expends less than the amount in Part il, Paragraph 1., such audit is not required. If the recipient
elects to conduct such an audit, the cost of the audit must be paid from the recipient's resources obtained from nonstate
entities.

4. State awards are to be identified using the Catalog of State Financial Assistance (CSFA) title and number,
award number and year, and name of the state agency awarding it.



725-030-06

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION
a1

Page 5 of 14

Part Il Other Audit Requirements

1. The Agency shall follow-up and take corrective action on audit findings. Preparation of a summary schedule of
prior year audit findings, including corrective action and current status of the audit findings is required. Current year audit
findings require corrective action and status of findings.

2. Records related to unresolved audit findings, appeals, or litigation shall be retained until the action is completed
or the dispute is resolved. Access to project records and audit work papers shall be given to the Depariment, the
Department Comptroller, and the Auditor General. This section does not limit the authority of the Department to conduct or
arrange for the conduct of additional audits or evaluations of state financial assistance or limit the authority of any other
state official.

Part IV Report Submission

1.  Copies of reporting packages for audits conducted in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, as revised, and required
by Section 7.62 Part | of this agreement shall be submitted, when required by Section .320 (d), OMB Circular A-133,
by or on behalf of the recipient directly to each of the following:

A. The Department at each of the following addresses:

District Two Aviation Administrator
1109 S. Marion Avenue

Mail Station 2018

Lake City, FL. 32025-5874

B. The number of copies required by Sections .320 (d){1) and (2), OMB Circular A-133, submitted to the following
address:

Federal Audit Clearinghouse
Bureau of the Census

1201 East 10th Street
Jeffersonville, IN 47132

C Other Federal agencies and pass-through entities in accordance with Sections .320 {e) and (f}, OMB Circular
A-133.

2. Inthe event that a copy of the reporting package for an audit required by Section 7.62 Part | of this Agreement and
conducted in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 is not required to be submitted to the Department for reasons
pursuant to section .320 (e)(2), OMB Circular A-133, the recipient shall submit the required written notification
pursuant to Section .320 {e)(2) and a copy of the recipient's audited schedule of expenditures of Federal awards
directly to each of the following:

District Two Avtation Administrator
1109 S. Marion Avenue

Mail Station 2018

Lake City, FL 32025-5874

In addition, pursuant to Section .320 (f), OMB Circular A-133, as revised, the recipient shall submit a copy of the
reporting package described in Section .320 (c). OMB Circular A-133, and any management letters issued by the
auditor, to the Department at each of the foilowing addresses:

District Two Aviation Administrator
1109 S. Marion Avenue

Mail Station 2018

Lake City, FL 32025-5874



725-030-06

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION
0241

Pagae 6 of 14

3. Copies of financial reporting packages required by Section 7.62 Part Il of this Agreement shall be submitted by or on
behalf of the recipient directly to each of the following:

A. The Department at each of the following addresses:

District Two Aviation Administrator
1109 S. Marion Avenue

Mail Station 2018

Lake City, FL 32025-5874

B. The Auditor Generat's Office at the following address:

Auditor General's Office

Room 401, Pepper Building

111 West Madison Street
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1450

4. Copies of reports or the management letter required by Section 7.62 Part [li of this Agreement shall be submitted by
or on behalf of the recipient directly to:

A. The Department at each of the following addresses:

District Two Aviation Administrator

1109 S. Marion Avenue

Mail Station 2018

Lake City, FL 32025-5874 7

5. Any reports, management letter, or other information required to be submitted to the Department pursuant to this
Agreement shail be submitted timely in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, Section 215.97, Florida Statutes, and
Chapter 10.550 (local governmental entities) or 10.650 {nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor
General, as applicable.

6. Recipients, when submitting financial reporting packages to the Department for audits done in accordance with OMB
Circular A-133 or Chapters 10.550 (local governmental entities) or 10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit organizations),
Rules of the Auditor General, should indicate the date that the reporting package was delivered to the Agency in
correspondence accompanying the reporting package.

7.63 Record Retention: The Agency shall retain sufficient records demonstrating its compliance with the terms of
this Agreement for a period of at least five years from the date the audit report is issued, and shall allow the Department,
or its designee, the CFO or Auditor Generat access to such records upon request. The Agency shall ensure that the
independent audit working papers are made available to the Department, or its designee, the CFO, or Auditor General
upon request for a period of at least five years from the date the audit report is issued, unless extended in writing by the
Department. Records of costs incurred under the terms of this Agreement shall be maintained and made available upon
request to the Department at all times during the period of this Agreement and for five years after final payment is made.
Copies of these documents and records shall be furnished to the Department upon request. Records of costs incurred
include the Participant’s general accounting records and the project records, together with supporting documents and
records, of the contractor and all subcontractors performing work on the project, and all other records of the Contractor
and subcontractors considered necessary by the Department for a proper audit of costs.

7.64 Other Requirements: If an audit discloses any significant audit findings related to any award, including
material noncompliance with individual project compliance requirements or reportable conditions in internal controls of the
Agency, the Agency shall submit as part of the audit package to the Department a plan for corrective action to eliminate
such audit findings or a statement describing the reasons that corrective action is not necessary. The Agency shall take
timely and appropriate corrective action to any audit findings, recommendations, and corrective action plans.



725-030-06

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION
0211

Page 7 of 14

7.65 Insurance: Execution of this Joint Participation Agreement constitutes a certification that the Agency has
and will maintain the ability to repair or repiace any project equipment or facilities in the event of ioss or damage due to
any accident or casualty for the 'useful life of such equipment or facilities. In the event of the loss of such equipment or
facilities, the Agency shall either replace the equipment or facilities or reimburse the Department to the extent of its
interest in the lost equipment or facility. In the event this Agreement is for purchase of land or for the construction of
infrastructure such as airpont runways the Department may waive or modify this section.

8.00 Requisitions and Payments:

8.10 Action by the Agency: In order to obtain any Department funds, the Agency shall file with the Department

of Transportation, District TWO Public Transportation Office LAKE CITY, FL. . FL.
32025-5874 its requisition on a form or forms prescribed by the Department, and any other data pertaining to

the project account (as defined in Paragraph 7.10 hereof) to justify and support the payment requisitions.

8.11 Invoices for fees or other compensation for services or expenses shall be submitted in detail
sufficient for a proper preaudit and postaudit thereof.

8.12 Invoices for any travel expenses shall be submitted in accordance with Chapter 112.061, F.S.
The Department may establish rates lower than the maximum provided in Chapter 112.061, F.S.

8.13 For real property acquired, submit;

{a) the date the Agency acquired the real property,

{b) a statement by the Agency certifying that the Agency has acquired said real property, and
actual consideration paid for real property.

(c) a statement by the Agency certifying that the appraisal and acquisition of the real property
together with any attendant relocation of occupants was accomplished in compliance with ail
federal laws, rules and procedures required by any federal oversight agency and with all state
laws, rutes and procedures that may apply to the Agency acquiring the real property.

8.20 The Department’s Obligations: Subject to other provisions hereof, the Department will honor such
requisitions in amounts and at times deemed by the Department to be proper to ensure the carrying out of the project
and payment of the eligible costs, However, notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the Department
may elect by notice in writing not to make a payment on the project if:

8.21 Misrepresentation: The Agency shall have made misrepresentation of a material nature in its application,
or any supplement thereto or amendment thereof, or in or with respect to any document or data furnished therewith or
pursuant hereto;

8.22 Litigation: There is then pending litigation with respect to the performance by the Agency of any of its duties
or obligations which may jeopardize or adversely affect the project, the Agreement, or payments to the project;

8.23 Approval by Department: The Agency shall have taken any action pertaining to the project which, under
this agreement, requires the approval of the Department or has made related expenditures or incurred related
obligations without having been advised by the Department that same are approved;

8.24 Conflict of Interests: There has been any violation of the conflict of interest provisions contained herein;
or

8.25 Default: The Agency has been determined by the Department to be in defauit under any of the
provisions of the Agreement.

B.26 Federal Participation (If Applicable): Any federal agency providing federal financial assistance to the
project suspends or terminates federal financial assistance to the project. In the event of suspension or termination of
federal financial assistance, the Agency will reimburse the Department for all disallowed costs, including any and all
federal financial assistance as detailed in Exhibit "B."



12503006

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION
0211

Page 8 of 14

8.30 Disallowed Costs: In determining the amount of the payment, prior to receipt of annua! natification of funds
availability, the Department will exclude all projects costs incurred by the Agency prior to the effective date of this
Agreement, costs which are not provided for in the latest approved budget for the project, and costs attributable to goods
or services received under a contract or other arrangements which have not been approved in writing by the Department
and costs invoiced prior to receipt of annual notification of fund availability.

8.40 Paymaent Offset: If, after praject completion, any claim is made by the Department resuiting from an audit
or for work or services performed pursuant to this agreement, the Department may offset such amount from payments
due for work or services done under any public transportation joint participation agreement which it has with the Agency
owing such amount if, upon demand, payment of the amount is not made within sixty (60) days to the Department.
Offsetting amounts shall not be considered a breach of contract by the Department.

9.00 Termination or Suspension of Project:

9.10 Termination or Suspension Generally: If the Agency abandons or, before completion, finally discontinues
the project. or if, by reason of any of the events or conditions set forth in Sections 8.21 to 8.26 inclusive, or for any other
reason, the commencement, prosecution, or timely completion of the project by the Agency is rendered improbable,
infeasible, impossible, or illegal, the Department will, by written notice to the Agency, suspend any or all of its
obligations under this Agreement until such time as the event or condition resulting in such suspension has ceased or
been corrected, or the Department may terminate any or all of its obligations under this Agreement,

9.11 Action Subsequent to Notice of Termination or Suspension. Upon receipt of any finai termination or
suspension notice under this paragraph, the Agency shall proceed promptly to carry out the actions required therein
which may include any or all of the following: (1} necessary action to terminate or suspend, as the case may be, project
activities and contracts and such other action as may be required or desirabte to keep to the minimum the costs upen the
basis of which the financing is to be computed; (2) fumish a statement of the project activities and contracts, and other
undertakings the cost of which are olherwise includable as project costs; and (3) remit to the Department such portion of
the financing and any advance payment previously received as is determined by the Department to be due under the
provisions of the Agreement. The termination or suspension shall be carried out in conformity with the latest schedule,
plan, and budget as approved by the Department or upon the basis of terms and conditions imposed by the Department
upon the failure of the Agency to fumnish the schedule, plan, and budget within a reasonable time. The approval of a
remittance by the Agency or the closing out of federal financial participation in the project shalt not constitute a waiver of
.any claim which the Department may otherwise have arising out of this Agreement.

9.12 The Department reserves the right to unilaterally cancel this Agreement for refusal by the contractor
or Agency to allow public access to all documents, papers, letters, or other material subject to the provisions of Chapter
119, F.S. and made or received in conjunction with this Agreement.

10.00 Remission of Project Account Upon Completion of Project: Upon completion of the project, and after
payment, provision for payment, or reimbursement of all project costs payable from the project account is made, the
Agency shall femit to the Department its share of any unexpended balance in the project account.

11.00 Audit and Inspection: The Agency shall permit, and shall require its contractors to permit, the
DCepartment's authorized representatives to inspect all work, materials, payrolls, records; and to audit the books, records
and accounts pertaining to the financing and development of the project.

12.00 Contracts of the Agency:

12.10 Third Party Agreements: Except as otherwise authorized in writing by the Department, the Agency shall
not execute any contract or obitgate itself in any manner requiring the disbursement of Department joint participation
funds, including consultant, construction or purchase of commodities contracts or amendments thereto, with any third
party with respect to the project without the written approval of the Department. Failure to obtain such approval shall be
sufficient cause for nonpayment by the Department as provided in Section 8.23. The Department specifically reserves
unto itself the right to review the qualifications of any consultant or contractor and to approve or disapprove the
employment of the same.



725-030-06

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION
o211

Page 9 of 14

12.20 Compliance with Consultants’' Competitive Negotiation Act: Itis understood and agreed by the parties
hereto that participation by the Department in a project with an Agency, where said project involves a consultant contract
for engineering, architecture or surveying services, is contingent on the Agency complying in full with provisions of
Chapter 287, F.S., Consultants’ Competitive Negotiation Act. At the discretion of the Department, the Agency will involve
the Department in the Consultant Selection Process for all contracts. In all cases, the Agency's Attorney shall certify to
the Department that selection has been accomplished in compliance with the Consultants' Competitive Negotiation Act.

12,30 Disadvantaged Business Entaerprise (DBE) Policy

12.31 DBE Policy: The Agency and its contractors agree to ensure that Disadvantaged Business
Enterprises as defined in 49 CFR Part 26, as amended, have the maximum oppartunity to participate in the performance
of contracts and this Agreement. In this regard, all recipients, and contractors shall take all necessary and reasonable
steps in accordance with 49 CFR Part 26, as amended, to ensure that the Disadvantaged Business Enterprises have the
maximum opportunity to compete for and perform contracts. Grantees, recipients and their contractors shall not
discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin or sex in the award and performance of Department assisted
contracts.

The recipient shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the award and
performance of any DOT-assisted contract or in the administration of its DBE program or the requirements of 49 CFR part
26. The recipient shall take all necessary and reasonabie steps under 49 CFR part 26 to ensure nondiscrimination in the
award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts. The recipient's DBE program, as required by 49 CFR part 26 and
as approved by DOT, is incorporated by reference in this agreement. Implementation of this program is a legal obligation
and failure to cary out its terms shall be treated as a violation of this agreement. Upon notification to the recipient of its
failure to carry out its approved program, the Department may impose sanctions as provided for under part 26 and may,
in appropriate cases, refer the matter for enforcement under 18 U.5.C. 1001 and/or the Program Fraud Civil Remedies
Act of 1986 (31 U.S.C. 3801 et seq.)

12.40 The Agency agrees to report any reasonable cause notice of noncompliance based on 49 CFR Part 26 filed
under this section to the Department within 30 days of receipt by the Agency.

13.00 Restrictions, Prohibitions, Controls, and Labor Provisions:

13.10 Equal Employment Opportunity: In connection with the carrying out of any project, the Agency shall
not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, age, creed, color, sex or national
origin. The Agency will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated
during employment, without regard to their race, age, creed, color, sex, or national origin. Such action shall include, but
not be limited to, the following: Employment upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising;
layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship.
The Agency shall insert the foregoing provision modified only to show the particular contractual relationship in all its
contracts in connection with the development or operation of the project, except contracts for standard commercial
supplies or raw materials, and shall require all such contractors to insent a similar provision in all subcontracts, except
subcontracts for standard commercial supplies or raw materials. When the project involves installation, construction,
demaolition, removal, site improvement, or similar work, the Agency shail post, in conspicuous places available to
employees and applicants for employment for project work, notices to be provided by the Department setting forth the
provisions of the nondiscrimination clause.

13.20 Title VI - Civil Rights Act of 1964: Execution of this Joint Participation Agreement constitutes a
certification that the Agency will comply with all the requirements imposed by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42
U.S.C. 2000d, et. seq.), the Regulations of the Federal Department of Transportation issued thereunder, and the
assurance by the Agency pursuant thereto.

13.30 Title VIIl - Civil Rights Act of 1968: Execution of this Joint Participation Agreement constitutes a
certification that the Agency will comply with all the requirements imposed by Title VIl of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, 42
USC 3601.et seq., which among other things, prohibits discrimination in housing an the basis of race, color, national
origin, creed, sex, and age.



725-030-06

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION
o211

Page 10 of 14

13.40 Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA): Execution of this Joint Participation Agreement
constitutes a certification that the Agency will comply with alt the requirements imposed by the ADA (42 U.3.C. 12102, et,
seq.}, the regulations of the federal government issued thereunder, and the assurance by the Agency pursuant thareto.

13.50 Prohibited Interests: The Agency shall not enter into a contract or arrangement in connection with the
project or any property included or planned to be included in the project, with any officer, director or employee of the
Agency, or any business entity of which the officer, director or employee or the officer’s, director's or employee’s spouse
or child is an officer, partner, director, or proprietor or in which such officer, director or employee or the officer’s, director’s
or employee's spouse or child, or any combination of them, has a material interest.

“Material Interest” means direct or indirect ownership of more than 5 percent of the total assets or capital stock of any
business entity.

The Agency shall not enter into any contract or arrangement in connection with the project or any property included or
planned to be included in the project, with any person or entity who was represented before the Agency by any person
who at any time during the immediately preceding two years was an officer, director or employee of the Agency.

The provisions of this subsection shall not be applicable to any agreement between the Agency and its fiscal
depositories, any agreement for utility services the rates for which are fixed or controlled by the government, or any
agreement between the Agency and an agency of state government.

13.60 Interest of Members of, or Delegates to, Congress: No member or delegate to the Congress of the
United States shall be admitted to any share or part of the Agreement or any benefit arising therefrom.

14.00 Miscellaneous Provisions:

14.10 Environmental Pollution: Execution of this Joint Participation Agreement constitutes a certification by the
Agency that the project will be carried cut in conformance with all applicable environmental regulations including the
securing of any applicable permits. The Agency will be solely responsible for any liability in the event of non-compliance
with applicable environmental regulations, including the securing of any applicable permits, and will reimburse the
Department for any loss incurred in connection therewith.

14.20 Department Not Obligated to Third Parties: The Department shail not be obligated or liable hereunder
to any party other than the Agency.

14.30 When Rights and Remedies Not Waived: In no event shall the making by the Department of any
payment to the Agency constitute or be construed as a waiver by the Department of any breach of covenant or any
default which may then exist, on the part of the Agency, and the making of such payment by the Department while any
such breach or default shall exist shali in no way impair or prejudice any right or remedy available to the Department with
respect to such breach or default,

14.40 How Agreement Is Affected by Provisions Being Held Invalid: i any provision of this Agreement is
held invalid, the remainder cf this Agreement shall not be affected. in such an instance the remainder would then
continue to conform to the terms and requirements of applicable law.

14.50 Bonus or Commission: By execution of the Agreement the Agency represents that it has not paid and,
also, agrees not to pay, any bonus or commission for the purpose of obtaining an approval of its application for the
financing hereunder.

14.60 State or Territorial Law: Nothing in the Agreement shall require the Agency to observe or enforce
compliance with any provision thereof, perform any other act or do any other thing in contravention of any applicable State
law: Provided, that if any of the provisions of the Agreement violate any applicable State law, the Agency will at once notify
the Department in writing in order that appropriate changes and modifications may be made by the Department and the
Agency to the end that the Agency may proceed as soon as possible with the project.



72503006

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION
0211

Page 11 of 14

14.70 Use and Maintenance of Project Facilities and Equipment: The Agency agrees that the project facilities
and equipment will be used by the Agency to provide or support public transportation for the period of the useful life of
such facilities and equipment as determined in accordance with general accounting principles and approved by the
Department. The Agency further agrees to maintain the project facilittes and equipment in good working order for the
useful life of said facilities or equipment.

14.71 Property Records: The Agency agrees to maintain property records, conduct physical inventories and
develop control systems as required by 49 CFR Part 18, when applicabie.

14.80 Disposal of Project Facilities or Equipment: If the Agency disposes of any project facility or equipment
during its useful life for any purpose except its replacement with like facility or equipment for public transportation use, the
Agency will compiy with the terms of 49 CFR Part 18 relating to property management standards. The Agency agrees to
remit to the Department a proportional amount of the proceeds from the disposal of the facility or equipment. Said
proportional amount shall be determined on the basis of the ratio of the Department financing of the facility or equipment
as provided in this Agreement.

14.90 Contractual indemnity: To the extent provided by law, the Agency shall indemnify, defend, and hoid
harmless the Department and all of its officers, agents, and empioyees from any claim, loss, damage, cost, charge, or
expense arising out of any act, error, omission, or negligent act by the Agency, its agents, or employees, during the
performance of the Agreement, except that neither the Agency, its agents, or its employees will be liable under this
paragraph for any claim, loss, damage, cost, charge, or expense arising out of any act, error, omission, or negligent act
by the Department or any of its officers, agents, or employees during the performance of the Agreement.

When the Department receives a notice of claim for damages that may have been caused by the Agency in the
performance of services required under this Agreement, the Department wiil immediately forward the claim to the
Agency. The Agency and the Department will evaiuate the claim and report their findings to each other within fourteen
(14) working days and will jointly discuss options in defending the claim. After reviewing the claim, the Department will
determine whether to require the participation of the Agency in the defense of the claim or to require that the Agency
defend the Department in such claim as described in this section. The Department's failure to promptly notify the Agency
of a claim shall not act as a waiver of any right herein to require the participation in or defense of the claim by Agency.
The Department and the Agency will each pay its own expenses for the evaluation, settlement negotiations, and trial, if
any. However, if anly one party participates in the defense of the claim at trial, that party is responsible for all expenses
at trial.

15.00 Plans and Specifications: In the event that this Agreement involves the purchasing of capital equipment
or the constructing and equipping of facilities, the Agency shall submit to the Department for approval all appropriate
plans and specifications covering the project. The Department will review all plans and specifications and will issue to the
Agency written approval with any approved portions of the project and comments or recommendations conceming any
remainder of the project deemed appropriate. After resolution of these comments and recommendations to the
DCepartment's satisfaction, the Department will issue to the Agency written approval with said remainder of the project.
Failure to obtain this written approval shall be sufficient cause for nonpayment by the Department as provided in
8.23.

16.00 Project Completion, Agency Certification: The Agency wili certify in writing on or attached to the finai
invoice, that the project was completed in accordance with applicable plans and specifications, is in place on the Agency
facility, that adequate title is in the Agency and that the project is accepted by the Agency as suitable for the intended
purpose. :

17.00 Appropriation of Funds:

17.10 The State of Florida's performance and obligation te pay under this Agreement is contingent upon an
annual appropriation by the Legislature.



7125-030-06

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION
92111

Page 12 of 14

17.20 Multi-Year Commitment: In the event this Agreement is in excess of $25,000 and has a term for a period
of more than one year, the provisions of Chapter 339.135(6)a), F.S., are hereby incorporated: “(a) The Department,
during any fiscal year, shall not expend money, incur any liability, or enter into any contract which, by its terms involves
the expenditure of money in excess of the amounts budgeted as available for expenditure during such fiscal year. Any
contract, verbal or written, made in violation of this subsection is null and void, and no money may be'paid on such
contract. The Department shall require a statement from the comptroller of the Department that funds are available prior
to entering into any such contract or other binding commitment of funds. Nothing herein contained shall prevent the
making of contracts for periods exceeding 1 year, but any contract sc made shall be executory only for the value of the
services to be rendered ar agreed to be paid for in succeeding fiscal years; and this paragraph shall be incorporated
verbatim in all contracts of the Department which are for an amount in excess of 25,000 dollars and which have a term for
a period of more than 1 year.”

18.00 Expiration of Agreement: The Agency agrees to complete the project on or before
MAY 30, 2012 . If the Agency does not complete the project within this time period, this Agreement
will expire unless an extension of the time period is requested by the Agency and granted in writing by the
URBAN AREA TRANSPORTATION MANAGER . Expiration of this Agreement will be considered termination
of the project and the procedure established in Section 9.00 of this Agreement shall be initiated.

18.10 Final Invoice: The Agency must submit the final invoice on this project to the Department within 120 days
after the expiration of this Agreement.

19.00 Agreement Format: All words used herein in the singular form shall extend to and include the plural. Ail
words used in the plural form shall extend to and include the singular. Ali words used in any gender shall extend to and
include all genders.

20.00 Execution of Agreement: This Agreement may be simultaneously executed in a minimum of two
counterparts, each of which so executed shail be deemed to be an original, and such counterparts together shall
constitute one in the same instrument.

21.00 Restrictions on Lobbying:

21.10 Federal: The Agency agrees that no federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on
behalf of the Agency, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence any officer or employee of any federal
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any federal loan, the
entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment or modification of any
federal contract, grant, loan or cooperative agreement.

If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid by the Agency to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Joint Participation Agreement, the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lebbying,” in accordance with
its instructions.

The Agency shall require that the language of this section be included in the award documents for all subawards at all
tiers {including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans and cooperative agreements) and that all
subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

21.20 State: No funds received pursuant to this contract may be expended for lobbying the Legislature or a state
agency.



725-030-06

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION
0211

Page 13 af 14

22.00 Vendors Rights: Vendors (in this document identified as Agency) providing goods and services to the
Department should be aware of the following time frames. Upon receipt, the Department has five (5) working days to
inspect and approve the goods and services unless the bid specifications, purchase order or contract specifies otherwise.
The Department has 20 days to deliver a request for payment (voucher) to the Department of Financial Services. The 20
days are measured from the latter of the date the invoice is received or the goods or services are received, inspected
and approved.

If a payment is not available within 40 days after receipt of the invoice and receipt, inspection and approval of goods and
services, a separate interest penalty in accordance with Section 215.422(3)(b), F.S. will be due and payable, in addition
to the invoice amount to the Agency. The interest penalty provision applies after a 35 day time period to heaith care
providers, as defined by rule. Interest penalties of less than one (1) dollar will not be enforced unless the Agency
requests payment. Invoices which have to be returned to an Agency because of vendor preparation errors will result in a
delay in the payment. The invoice payment requirements do not start until a properly completed invoice is provided to tha
Department.

A Vendor Ombudsman has been established within the Department of Financial Services. The duties of this individual
include acting as an advocate for Agencies who may be experiencing problems in obtaining timely payment(s) from the
Cepartment. The Vendor Ombudsman may be contacted at {§50) 413-5516.

23.00 Public Entity Crime: A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a
conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a bid an a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity,
may not submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work,
may not submit bids on leases of real property to a public entity, may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor,
supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity, and may not transact business with any
public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in 5. 287.017, F.S. for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36
manths from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list.

24.00 Discrimination: An entity or affiliate who has been placed on the discriminatory vendor list may not submit
a bid on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a bid on a contract with a public
entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work, may not submit bids on leases of real property to a
public entity, may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract
with any public entity, and may not transact business with any public entity.

25.00 E-Verify: The Agency shall utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security's E-Verify system, in
accordance with the terms governing use of the system, to confirm the employment eligibility of;

1. all persons employed by the Agency during the term of the Contract to perform employment duties within
Florida; and

2. all persons, including subcontractors, assigned by the Agency to perform work pursuant to the contract with
the Department.



125-030-08

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION
0211

Page 14 of 14

Financial Project No(s). 43057519411

Contract No.

Agreement Date

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused these presents be executed, the day and year first above written.

AGENCY

The CITY OF LAKE CITY

AGENCY NAME

SIGNATORY (PRINTED CR TYPED)

SIGNATURE

TITLE

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY
By:

HERBLRT F. DARBY
City Attorney

FDOT

See attached Encumbrance Form for date of Funding
Approval by Comptroller

LEGAL REVIEW
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Robert L. Parks, Director of Planning & Production
TITLE




EXHIBIT - 1

FEDERAL and/or STATE resources awarded to the recipient pursuant to this agreement should be listed
below. If the resources awarded to the recipient represent more than one Federal or State program, provide
the same information for each program and the total resources awarded. Compliance Reguirements
applicable to each Federal or State program should also be listed below. If the resources awarded to the
recipient represent more than one program, list applicable compliance requirements for each program in the
same manner as shown here:

s (e.g., What services or purposes the resources must be used for)
+ (e.q., Eligibility requirements for recipients of the resources)

¢ (Etc..}

NOTE: Instead of listing the specific compliance requirements as shown above, the State awarding agency
may elect to use language that requires the recipient to comply with the requirements of applicable
provisions of specific laws, rules, regulations, etc. The State awarding agency, if practical, may want to
attach a copy of the specific taw, rule, or regulation referred to.

FEDERAL RESOURCES

Federal Agency Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance {Number & Title) Amount
Federal Aviation Administration 20.106 $115,372.00

Compliance Requirements

1.
2.

STATE RESOURCES

State Agency Catalog of State Financial Assistance {Number & Title) Amount
Ftorida Department of Transportation 55004 $3,036.00

Comptliance Requirements

1.
2.
3.

Matching Resources for Federal Programs

Federal Agency Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (Number & Title) Amount
City of Lake City $3,036.00

Compliance Requirements

1.
2.
3.

NOTE: Section .400(d} of OMB Circutar A-133, as revised, and Section 215.97(5)(a), Florida Statutes,
require that the information about Federal Programs and 5tate Projects included in Exhibit 1 be provided

to the recipient.



FINANCIAL PROJECT # 43057519411

EXHIBIT "A"
PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND RESPONSIBILITIES

This exhibit forms an integral part of that certain Joint Participation Agreement
between the State of Florida, Department of Transportation and the City of Lake City,
205 N. Marion Avenue, Lake City, Florida 32028 referenced by the above Financial

Project Number.

PROJECT LOCATION:

Lake City Municipal Airport
Lake City, Florida

Columbia County

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:
For the purchase and installation of new Automatic Weather Observation System

(AWOS III).

SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS BY AGENCY:

The audit report(s) required in paragraph 7.60 of the Agreement shall include a schedule
of project assistance that will reflect the Department's contract number, Financial Project
Number and the Federal Identification number, where applicable, and the amount of state
funding action (receipt and disbursement of funds) and any federal or local funding
action and the funding action from any other source with respect to the project.

SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS BY DEPARTMENT: The following conditions would
warrant an administrative action by the Department which may result in
termination and closure of the grant award:

¢ No invoice activity for 6 months or No contract activity for 18 months

Effective July 1, 2010, Section 215.971, Florida Statutes (F.S.) now requires all new
Joint Participation Agreement (JPA) the Department executes to clearly document
contract deliverables and establish minimum level of services. The JPA scope of
services will be required to clearly divide project tasks into quantifiable,
measurable, and verifiable units of deliverables that must be received and accepted
by the Department, in writing, prior to payment for services. Each deliverable must
specify the required level of service to be performed and the Department’s criteria
for evaluating successful completion. Once the following items have been submitted
to and approved in writing by the Department they will be added to this JPA under
Exhibit “A™ to meet the deliverable requirements under Section 215.971 F.S.:

Scope of Services

Design Phase



1. Asigned copy of the approved scope of services and schedule of values
that are incorporated into an agreement between the Agency and its third-
party consultant. The scope of services must include or incorporate by
reference a schedule of values that will be used to approve and make
payments to the third-party consuitant. The scope of services and included
schedule of values must be approved in writing by the Department before
the Agency enters into an agreement with its third-party consultant. The
schedule of values shall be a complete and detailed itemization describing
each subcategory of work and related pay items and their associated total
value, quantity, unit of measurement and unit price/cost. The consultant
should invoice the Agency on a regular basis using the approved schedule
of values and one of the following methods:

a. Percentage Completed. For this method the consultant’s invoice should
list a detail description of each task in the approved scope of services and
schedule of values, the dollar value amount for the item, the percentage
competed for the item, and the dollar value for the percentage completed.

b. Completed Tasks. For this method the consultant’s invoice should list a
detail description of each task in the approved scope of services and
schedule of values, the dollar value amount for each item, indicate which
task have been completed, and the dollar value for each task completed.

2. The Agency shall sign each invoice submitted to the Department and’
certify thereon that the Agency has verified that the percentages of and/or
task completions are correct and that the amounts indicated on the invoice
are correct.

3. Any change(s) to the approved scope of services or schedule of values will
require a change order approved by the Department, and signed by the
Agency and the third-party consultant. Invoices incorporating unapproved
changes cannot be submitted by the Agency or paid by the Department.

Construction Phase
4. Asigned copy of the approved scope of services and schedule of values

that are incorporated into an agreement between the Agency and its
construction contractor. The scope of services must include or incorporate
by reference a schedule of values that will be used to approve and make
payments to the contractor. The scope of services and included schedule of
values must be approved in writing by the Department before the Agency
enters into an agreement with its contractor. The schedule of values shall
be a complete and detailed itemization describing each subcategory of



work and related pay items and their associated total value, quantity, unit
of measurement and unit price/cost. The contractor should invoice the
Agency on a regular basis using the approved schedule of values and one of
the following methods:

Percentage Completed. For this method the contractor’s invoice should list
a detail description of each task in the approved scope of services and
schedule of values, the dollar value amount for the item, the percentage
competed for the item, and the dollar value for the percentage completed.

. Completed Tasks. For this method the contractor’s invoice should list a

detail description of each task in the approved scope of services and
schedule of values, the dollar value amount for each item, indicate which
task have been completed, and the dollar value for each task completed.

. The contractor should submit their pay request to the Agency’s project
inspector for approval using the standard “Application and Certificate for
Payment” form. The Agency’s project inspector will review and approve
the contractor’s pay request certifying the percentage of completion
and/or quantities are correct.

. The Agency shall sign each invoice submitted to the Department and
certify thereon that the Agency has verified that the percentages of and/or
task completions are correct and that the amounts indicated on the invoice
are correct.

Any change(s) to the approved scope of services or schedule of values will
require a change order approved by the Department, and signed by the
Agency and the contractor. Invoices incorporating unapproved changes
cannot be submitted by the Agency or paid by the Department.






